PHILADELPHIA REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

1234 MARKET STREET, 16TH FLOOR
PHILADELPHIA, PA 19107

BOARD MEETING
WEDNESDAY, DECEMBER 10, 2025

Executive Session — 3:30 P.M.
Open Session —4:00 P.M.

AGENDA

APPROVAL OF BOARD MINUTES

Meeting of November 12, 2025

l. ADMINISTRATIVE

Emergency Rehabilitation of Philadelphia Art Museum Steps
Masonry Preservation Group, Inc.

2600 Benjamin Franklin Parkway

Approval of First Amendment to Construction Contract

1. DEVELOPMENT

@) Brandywine Associates, LLC
3721-29 Brandywine Street
Certificate of Completion

(b) Casablanca Investors, LLC

4014 Green Street
Certificate of Completion

1. HOUSING FINANCE

Birchwood at Cedars Village
921-31 Ellsworth Street

Page
(1)

(4)

(8)

(12)

Consent to Transfer of Interests and Assumption of Existing Loan

originally made to St. Maron Hall, LP



PHILADELPHIA REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

BOARD MEETING MINUTES

A meeting of the Board of Directors of the Philadelphia Redevelopment Authority was held on
Wednesday, November 12, 2025, commencing at 4:01 P.M., in the offices of the Philadelphia
Redevelopment Authority, being its regular meeting place, 16th floor, 1234 Market Street,
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, pursuant to proper notices.

ROLL CALL

The following members of the Board of Directors reported present: Jessie Lawrence, Vice Chair;
Maria Duque-Buckley, 2nd Vice Chair and Assistant Secretary; Kate McGlinchey, Treasurer and
Mark Lynch, Secretary.

The following member of the Board of Directors was not present: David S. Thomas, Chair.

The following assigned staff were present: Alex Braden, Susan Varghese, Angel Rodriguez, Jojy
Varghese, and Elizabeth Bonaccorso.

Also in attendance: Suzanne Ponsen, West Central/Germantown Neighbors; Barbara Dowdall,
Historic Germantown; and Gerry Givnish, Germantown.

‘;

MINUTES

Mr. Lawrence called for a motion to approve the minutes of the October 08, 2025 Board
meeting.

Upon motion made and duly seconded, the minutes of the October 08, 2025 Board meeting were
approved.

‘;

ADMINISTRATIVE

Mr. Braden presented "Item | (a) — Approval of Sixth Amendment to Grant Agreement
with the City of Philadelphia, acting through its Capital Program Office as Successor in
interest to the Department of Public Property and the Office of the Director of Finance™ in
substance consistent with the fact sheet attached hereto.

Board Action

Board Meeting of November 12, 2025
2025 — Page 171



Mr. Lawrence called for a motion on the resolution. Upon motion made and duly seconded, the
resolution was approved as follows:

RESOLUTION NO. 2025-39

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING APPROVAL OF A SIXTH AMENDMENT TO GRANT
AGREEMENT WITH THE CITY OF PHILADELPHIA, ACTING THROUGH ITS
CAPITAL PROGRAM OFFICE AS SUCCESSOR IN INTEREST TO THE
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC PROPERTY AND THE OFFICE OF THE DIRECTOR OF
FINANCE, AS GRANTOR, AND THE PHILADELPHIA REDEVELOPMENT
AUTHORITY, AS GRANTEE, INCREASING THE GRANT FUNDS AMOUNT AND
EXTENDING THE TERM OF THE GRANT AGREEMENT, AS PREVIOUSLY
AMENDED, TO FINANCE CAPITAL CONSTRUCTION AND IMPROVEMENT
PROJECTS IN AND AROUND THE CITY

WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution No. 2019-61, adopted on August 14, 2019, the Board
authorized a Grant Agreement with the City of Philadelphia, acting through its Department of
Public Property and its Finance Department (the "City"), as grantor, wherein the City agreed to
provide funding to the Philadelphia Redevelopment Authority (the "Authority™), as grantee, in the
amount of Ten Million Dollars ($10,000,000.00) (the "Grant Funds") for use in capital construction
and improvement projects in and around the City.

WHEREAS, the Grant Agreement was executed by the Authority and the City on October
23, 2019, and was for a term of one (1) year.

WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution No. 2020-77, adopted on December 9, 2020, the
Authority Board authorized a First Amendment to Grant Agreement (the "First Amendment") with
the City, as grantor, wherein the term of the Grant Agreement was extended for one (1) year,
effective October 23, 2020.

WHEREAS, the First Amendment was executed by the Authority and the City on
December 23, 2020, and made effective as of October 23, 2020.

WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution No. 2021-71, adopted on October 13, 2021, the
Authority Board authorized a Second Amendment to Grant Agreement (the "Second Amendment")
with the City, as grantor, wherein the term of the Grant Agreement was extended for one (1) year,
effective October 23, 2021, and the Grant Funds were increased by Seven Million Six Hundred
Thousand Dollars ($7,600,000.00).

WHEREAS, the Second Amendment was executed by the Authority and the City on
November 4, 2021, and made effective as of October 23, 2021.

WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution No. 2022-42, adopted on July 13, 2022, the Authority
Board authorized a Third Amendment to Grant Agreement (the "Third Amendment™) with the City,
as grantor, wherein the term of the Grant Agreement was extended for one (1) year, effective
October 23, 2022, and the Grant Funds were increased by Ten Million Dollars ($10,000,000.00).

Board Meeting of November 12, 2025
2025 — Page 172



WHEREAS, the Third Amendment was executed by the Authority and the City on August
1, 2022.

WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution No. 2023-29, adopted on May 17, 2023, the Authority
Board authorized a Fourth Amendment to Grant Agreement (the "Fourth Amendment™) with the
City, as grantor, wherein the term of the Grant Agreement was extended for one (1) year, effective
October 23, 2023, and the Grant Funds were increased by Thirty Million Dollars ($30,000,000.00).

WHEREAS, the Fourth Amendment was executed by the Authority and the City on May
23, 2023.

WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution No. 2024-27, adopted on June 12, 2024, the Authority
Board authorized a Fifth Amendment to Grant Agreement (the "Fifth Amendment") with the City,
as grantor, wherein the term of the Grant Agreement was extended for one (1) year, effective
October 23, 2024, and the Grant Funds were increased by Ten Million Dollars ($10,000,000.00).

WHEREAS, the Fifth Amendment was executed by the Authority and the City effective as
of October 23, 2024.

WHEREAS, the City and the Authority now seek authorization to (i) extend the term of the
Grant Agreement, as previously amended, for one (1) year, effective as of October 23, 2025, (ii)
amend the Grant Agreement, as previously amended, to increase the Grant Funds by an additional
Ten Million Dollars ($10,000,000.00) such that the total Grant Funds to be issued under the Grant
Agreement, as previously amended, will now be Seventy-Seven Million Six Hundred Thousand
Dollars ($77,600,000.00), and (iii) identify the Capital Program Office as the successor in interest to
the Department of Parks & Recreation and the Office of the Director of Finance as the City
departments administering the Grant Agreement, as amended.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Philadelphia Redevelopment Authority,
that authorization is hereby given to the Authority's Deputy Executive Director of Real Estate to
enter into a Sixth Amendment to Grant Agreement with the City of Philadelphia, acting through its
Department of Public Property and its Finance Department, as grantor, to (i) extend the term of the
Grant Agreement for one (1) year, effective as of October 23, 2025, (ii) amend the Grant
Agreement, as previously amended, to increase the Grant Funds by an additional Ten Million
Dollars ($10,000,000.00) such that the total Grant Funds to be issued under the Grant Agreement, as
previously amended, will now be Seventy-Seven Million Six Hundred Thousand Dollars
($77,600,000.00), and (iii) identify the Capital Program Office as the successor in interest to the
Department of Public Property and the Office of the Director of Finance as the City departments
administering the Grant Agreement, as amended.

FURTHER AUTHORIZING, the preparation, execution, and delivery of all
documentation necessary to carry out the foregoing in form and substance acceptable to the Deputy
Executive Director of Real Estate and General Counsel.

Board Meeting of November 12, 2025
2025 — Page 173



FURTHER RESOLVING, that the Deputy Executive Director of Real Estate, with the
advice of General Counsel, may allow modifications to the Resolution necessary or desirable to
carry out its purposes and intents.

Voting for the foregoing resolution: Mr. Lawrence, Ms. Buckley, Ms. McGlinchey, and Mr.
Lynch.

‘;

Mr. Rodriguez presented *'Item | (b) — Conveyance of Title to Philadelphia Redevelopment
Authority Properties to the Philadelphia Land Bank™ in substance consistent with the fact
sheet attached hereto.

Board Action

Mr. Lawrence called for a motion on the resolution. Upon motion made and duly seconded, the
resolution was approved as follows:

RESOLUTION NO. 2025-40

PHILADELPHIA LAND BANK - RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CONVEYANCE
OF CERTAIN PROPERTIES OWNED BY THE PHILADELPHIA REDEVELOPMENT
AUTHORITY TO THE PHILADELPHIA LAND BANK

WHEREAS, Act 153 of 2012, 68 Pa. C.S.A. § 2101, et seq. (the "Land Bank Act")
authorized the City of Philadelphia (the "City™) to create a land bank in accordance with the
Land Bank Act.

WHEREAS, the City, in Bill No. 130156-A (approved December 18, 2013), authorized
the creation of the Philadelphia Land Bank and provided for its appointment, powers and duties.

WHEREAS, under Section 2109 of Land Bank Act, 68 Pa. C.S.A. § 2109(d)(3), a
redevelopment authority, with the consent of the local governing body and without a
redevelopment contract, may convey title to certain redevelopment authority property to a land
bank.

WHEREAS, the properties identified on Exhibit "A" to this Resolution which are owned
by the Philadelphia Redevelopment Authority qualify for transfer from the Philadelphia
Redevelopment Authority to the Philadelphia Land Bank as provided by Section 2109 of the
Land Bank Act.

Board Meeting of November 12, 2025
2025 — Page 174



WHEREAS, the transfer of the properties identified on Exhibit "A" to this Resolution to
the Philadelphia Land Bank will promote the public purposes for which the City created the
Philadelphia Land Bank.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Philadelphia Redevelopment
Authority, that authorization is hereby given to the Philadelphia Redevelopment Authority to
convey title to those properties identified on Exhibit "A" hereto, to the Philadelphia Land Bank,
and for the preparation, execution, acknowledgment and delivery of deeds to the Philadelphia
Land Bank, without consideration, pursuant to Section 2109 of Land Bank Act, 68 Pa. C.S.A. §
2109(d)(3), and to obtain the appropriate councilmanic action.

FURTHER AUTHORIZING, the preparation, execution, and delivery of all
documentation necessary to carry out the foregoing in form and substance acceptable to the
Deputy Executive Director of Real Estate and General Counsel.

FURTHER RESOLVING, that the Deputy Executive Director of Real Estate, with the

advice of General Counsel, may allow modifications to the Resolution necessary or desirable to
carry out its purposes and intents.

EXHIBIT "A"

3 Councilmanic District Property

3830 Wallace Street

8" Councilmanic District Property

226 E. Bringhurst Street

Voting for the foregoing resolution: Mr. Lawrence, Ms. Buckley, Ms. McGlinchey, and Mr.
Lynch.

‘;

HOUSING FINANCE

Mr. Braden presented "Item Il — Consent to Transfer of Property and Assumption of
Existing Loans originally made to Chatham Apartment Associates, L.P."" in substance
consistent with the fact sheet attached hereto.

Board Meeting of November 12, 2025
2025 — Page 175



Additional Comments and Discussion

Mr. Lawrence asked since Brad Ingerman is liquidating assets, should we expect more such
requests to come before the Board. Mr. Braden replied that there would be at least one more
consent request coming before the Board and noted a previously approved transfer of an
Ingerman property to PHA.

Mr. Lawrence recognized Gerry Givnish and invited him to speak. Mr. Givnish asked what the
monthly rent of low-income housing was. Mr. Lawrence responded that it depends upon the
project, location, unit, et cetera. Mr. Givnish asked whether in a pricier neighborhood the rent
would be higher. Mr. Lawrence replied, yes but clarified that rent is based on income levels,
project, location, unit size, and other applicable factors.

Board Action

Mr. Lawrence called for a motion on the resolution. Upon motion made and duly seconded, the
resolution was approved as follows:

RESOLUTION NO. 2025-41

RESOLUTION  AUTHORIZING THE PHILADELPHIA  REDEVELOPMENT
AUTHORITY TO CONSENT TO THE TRANSFER OF THE WILLOWS AT WALNUT
HILL (FORMERLY CHATHAM COURT) AND ASSUMPTION OF EXISTING LOANS
ORIGINALLY MADE TO CHATHAM APARTMENT ASSOCIATES, L.P.

WHEREAS, on April 13, 1999, the Philadelphia Redevelopment Authority (the
"Authority") issued a non-recourse construction loan to Chatham Apartment Associates, L.P.
("Original Borrower"), a subsidiary of Ingerman Affordable Housing Inc. (Ingerman”), secured
by a mortgage and evidenced by a note in the amount of One Million Three Hundred Fifty-Seven
Dollars ($1,357,000.00) (the "CDBG Loan") at zero percent (0%) interest with a term of forty
(40) years and with payments of principal to be made in equal annual installments beginning on
the thirty-first (31%") anniversary of the initial loan closing in such amounts as will fully amortize
the CDBG Loan by the fortieth (40™") anniversary of the initial loan closing.

WHEREAS, on April 13, 1999, the Authority issued a non-recourse construction loan to
Original Borrower secured by a mortgage and evidenced by a note in the amount of Four
Hundred Forty Thousand Dollars ($440,000.00) (the "HOME Loan," and together with the
CDBG Loan, the "Authority Loans") at five and sixty-seven hundredths percent (5.67%) interest
compounded annually with a term of forty (40) years and with payments of principal and interest
to be made in equal annual installments beginning on the thirty-first (31%) anniversary of the
initial loan closing in such amounts as will fully amortize the HOME Loan by the fortieth (40"
anniversary of the initial loan closing.

Board Meeting of November 12, 2025
2025 — Page 176



WHEREAS, the proceeds of the Authority Loans were used to assist with the substantial
rehabilitation of forty-four (44) units of permanent rental housing for low-income residents
located at 242-52 South 49th Street, known as the Willows at Walnut Hill (formerly Chatham
Court) (the "Project").

WHEREAS, Ingerman is in the process of liquidating its various affordable housing
assets, and in connection therewith has proposed that Original Borrower convey the Project (the
"Conveyance") to Walnut Hill Orchard, LLC ("New Borrower").

WHEREAS, in connection with the Conveyance, New Borrower seeks to assume and be
bound by all of the terms of the Authority Loans, and to take over management of the Project, all
as more specifically set forth in the fact sheet accompanying this Resolution.

WHEREAS, Original Borrower and New Borrower have requested that the Authority
consent to the transfer of ownership of the Project to New Borrower and its assumption of the
Authority Loans from Original Borrower

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors of the
Philadelphia Redevelopment Authority, that authorization is hereby given to permit the transfer
of the Project to, and the assumption of the existing Authority Loans in the aggregate original
principal amount of One Million Seven Hundred Ninety-Seven Dollars ($1,797,000.00) by,
Walnut Hill Orchard, LLC.

FURTHER AUTHORIZING, the preparation, execution, and delivery of all
documentation necessary to carry out the foregoing in form and substance acceptable to the
Deputy Executive Director of Real Estate and General Counsel.

FURTHER RESOLVING, that the Deputy Executive Director of Real Estate, with the
advice of General Counsel, may allow modifications to the Resolution necessary or desirable to
carry out its purposes and intents.

Voting for the foregoing resolution: Mr. Lawrence, Ms. Buckley, Ms. McGlinchey, and Mr.
Lynch.

‘;

OLD BUSINESS

Mr. Lawrence asked if there was any old business for the Board. Mr. Lawrence recognized
Suzanne Ponsen and invited her to speak. Ms. Ponsen asked for an update with respect to the
Germantown Y. Mr. Rodriguez replied that there were currently no plans and that no
applications have been submitted. Ms. Ponsen stated the property is shown as being owned and
available. Mr. Rodriguez reiterated that there are currently no plans to issue an RFP, but that
PRA is in position to receive and consider any qualified application.

Board Meeting of November 12, 2025
2025 — Page 177



Mr. Lawrence recognized Gerry Givnish and invited him to speak. Mr. Givnish asserted that the
Germantown Y, sitting unused, is a problem in the neighborhood and asked what the Authority is
doing about it. Mr. Rodriguez emphasized that anyone could submit a non-competitive proposal.
Mr. Lawrence stated that the property is available. Mr. Givnish asked if Councilmember Bass
has the ability to reject an applicant that the Authority submits.

Ms. Ponsen pointed out that KBK has an agreement for the Germantown "Y". Mr. Rodriguez
replied there is not currently an agreement with KBK and there are no applications for this

property.

Mr. Lawrence recognized Barbara Dowdall and invited her to speak. Ms. Dowdall asked if
someone could submit a proposal consisting of a plan, drawings, and specifications outlined.
Ms. Dowdall noted the costs that would incur, particularly if the Councilmember can approve or
not introduce a resolution to Council for approval. Mr. Rodriguez responded that City Council
has no control over the Authority and the Authority has no control over City Council. Mr.
Rodriguez acknowledged that there is a risk that any proposed conveyance of a publicly owned
property may not receive the necessary approvals to proceed.

Ms. Dowdall asserted that the property continues to deteriorate thus making it more susceptible
to damage and vandalism, noting past fires which have damaged the property as it continues to
sit without being developed while costs increase.

Mr. Givnish asked if the Authority speaks with Councilmember Bass. Mr. Givnish stated this is
a bad law that can stall development and asked if the community should start a fire, emphasizing
that the neighborhood is being harmed the longer the property remains vacant. Mr. Givnish
noted that a person was killed and left in a neglected city owned building, and asked what
assurances there are that this won’t happen again. Ms. Varghese replied that the Authority has
measures in place to keep the Germantown Y sealed and secure.

‘;

NEW BUSINESS

Mr. Lawrence asked if there was any new business for the Board. No new business was
presented to the Board.

ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business to come before the Board, Mr. Lawrence called for a motion to
adjourn the meeting. Upon motion made and duly seconded, the meeting was adjourned at 4:17
P.M.

SECRETARY TO THE BOARD

Board Meeting of November 12, 2025
2025 — Page 178



Item | (a)

BOARD FACTSHEET

Meeting of November 12, 2025
PHILADELPHIA Approval of Sixth Amendment to Grant Agreement with the
REDEVELOPMENT k . ) i ) ) .
AUTHORITY City of Philadelphia, acting through its Capital Program Office as
successor in interest to the Department of Public Property and
the Office of the Director of Finance

)
)
)

NAME OF GRANTOR: The City of Philadelphia, acting through its Capital
Program Office as successor in interest to the Department of Public Property
and the Office of the Director of Finance (the "City").

BACKGROUND: Pursuant to Resolution No. 2019-61, adopted on August 14,
2019, the Board authorized a Grant Agreement with the City, as grantor,
wherein the City agreed to provide funding to the Philadelphia Redevelopment
Authority (the "Authority"), as grantee, in the amount of $10,000,000.00 (the
"Grant Funds") for use in capital construction and improvement projects in and
around the City (each, a "Project," and collectively, the "Projects"). The Grant
Agreement was executed by the Authority and the City on October 23, 2019.
The term of the Grant Agreement was for one year.

Pursuant to Resolution No. 2020-77, adopted on December 9, 2020, the Board
authorized a First Amendment to Grant Agreement (the "First Amendment")
with the City, as grantor, wherein the term of the Grant Agreement was
extended for one year, effective October 23, 2020. The First Amendment was
executed by the Authority and the City on December 23, 2020, and made
effective as of October 23, 2020.

Pursuant to Resolution No. 2021-71, adopted on October 13, 2021, the Board
authorized a Second Amendment to Grant Agreement (the "Second
Amendment") with the City, as grantor, wherein the term of the Grant
Agreement was extended for an additional one year, effective October 23,
2021, and the Grant Funds were increased by $7,600,000.00. The Second
Amendment was executed by the Authority and the City on November 4, 2021,
and made effective as of October 23, 2021.

Pursuant to Resolution No. 2022-42, adopted on July 13, 2022, the Board
authorized a Third Amendment to Grant Agreement (the "Third Amendment")
with the City, as grantor, wherein the term of the Grant Agreement was
extended for one year, effective October 23, 2022, and the Grant Funds were

9 Board Meeting of November 12, 2025
2025 - Page 179



Item | (a)

increased by $10,000,000.00. The Third Amendment was executed by the
Authority and the City on August 1, 2022.

Pursuant to Resolution No. 2023-29, adopted on May 17, 2023, the Board
authorized a Fourth Amendment to Grant Agreement (the "Fourth
Amendment") with the City, as grantor, wherein the term of the Grant
Agreement was extended for one year, effective October 23, 2023, and the
Grant Funds were increased by $30,000,000.00. The Fourth Amendment was
executed by the Authority and the City on May 23, 2023.

Pursuant to Resolution No. 2024-27, adopted on June 12, 2024, the Board
authorized a Fifth Amendment to Grant Agreement (the "Fifth Amendment")
with the City, as grantor, wherein the term of the Grant Agreement was
extended for one year, effective October 23, 2024, and the Grant Funds were
increased by $10,000,000.00. The Fifth Amendment was executed by the
Authority and the City effective as of October 23, 2024.

NATURE OF REQUEST/TRANSACTION: Authorization is now sought to (i) extend
the term of the Grant Agreement, as previously amended, for one (1) year
effective October 23, 2025, (ii) amend the Grant Agreement, as previously
amended, to increase the Grant Funds by an additional $10,000,000.00 such
that the total Grant Funds to be issued under the Grant Agreement, as
previously amended, will now be $77,600,000.00, and (iii) identify the Capital
Program Office as the successor in interest to the Department of Public
Property and the Office of the Director of Finance as the City departments
administering the Grant Agreement, as amended.

The City will continue to provide a scope of work for each phase of a Project by
sending the Authority a work order form, which the Authority will review and
approve. The Authority will continue to receive an administrative fee in the
amount of eight percent of the total costs and expenses which are actually
incurred by the Authority relative to each Project.

The City may terminate the Grant Agreement with 30 days' advance written
notice.

Proposed Resolution is attached.

Prepared by: Alex Braden

10 Board Meeting of November 12, 2025
2025 - Page 180



Item | (b)

I
)
)

BOARD FACTSHEET

:::JL:VDEELIE:‘:I':'IZNT Meeting of November 12, 2025
AUTHORITY Conveyance of Philadelphia Redevelopment Authority Properties

to Philadelphia Land Bank

NATURE OF TRANSACTION:

The Philadelphia Redevelopment Authority (the "Authority") will facilitate the
conveyance of title to certain properties owned by the Authority to the
Philadelphia Land Bank:

e The conveyance of these properties will be for the disposition, reuse, and
management by the Philadelphia Land Bank.

e The Authority-owned properties listed below were approved for
conveyance to the Philadelphia Land Bank in collaboration with the 374 and
8th Councilmanic District Offices

PROPERTY INFORMATION:

The Authority-owned properties attached hereto as Exhibit "A" will be conveyed
to the Philadelphia Land Bank without consideration, pursuant to Section 2109
of Land Bank Act, 68 Pa. C.S.A. § 2109(d)(3).

Proposed Resolution is attached.

Prepared by: Brian Romano
Reviewed by: Angel Rodriguez

11 Board Meeting of November 12, 2025
2025 - Page 181



Item | (b)

EXHIBIT "A"

3'd Councilmanic District Property

3830 Wallace Street

8th Councilmanic District Property

226 E. Bringhurst Street

12 Board Meeting of November 12, 2025
2025 - Page 182



ltem I

BOARD FACTSHEET
Meeting of November 12, 2025
PHILADELPHIA Consent to Transfer of Property and Assumption of Existing Loans
REDEVELOPMENT o .
AUTHORITY originally made to Chatham Apartment Associates, L.P
Willows at Walnut Hill
242-252 South 49" Street

)
)
)

NATURE OF TRANSACTION: Authorization for the Philadelphia Redevelopment
Authority (the "Authority") to consent to the transfer of ownership of the
Project (as hereinafter defined) and the assumption of existing Authority debt
with respect to the Project.

BACKGROUND: In 1999, the Authority provided two loans to Chatham
Apartment Associates, L.P. ("Original Borrower"), a subsidiary of Ingerman
Affordable Housing Inc., secured by two mortgages and evidenced by two
notes: (i) in the amount of $1,357,000.00 (the "CDBG Loan") and (ii) in the
amount of $440,000.00 (the "HOME Loan," and together with the CDBG Loan,
the "Authority Loans"). The proceeds of the Authority Loans were used to assist
with the substantial rehabilitation of 44 units of permanent rental housing for
low-income residents located at 242-52 South 49t Street, known as the
Willows at Walnut Hill (formerly Chatham Court) (the "Project").

The CDBG Loan was structured with a term of 40 years at 0% from the date of
the initial loan closing, and beginning on the 31st anniversary of the initial loan
closing, payments of principal in equal annual installments shall be made in
such amounts as will fully amortize the CDBG Loan by the 40" anniversary of
the initial loan closing. The HOME Loan was structured with a term of 40 years
at 5.67% interest compounded annually, and beginning on the 31%t anniversary
of the initial loan closing, payments of principal and interest in equal annual
installments shall be made in such amounts as will fully amortize the HOME
Loan by the 40" anniversary of the initial loan closing.

PROPOSAL: Brad Ingerman, the principal of Ingerman Affordable Housing, Inc.,
is in the process of liquidating his various affordable housing assets, and in
connection therewith has proposed that Original Borrower convey the Project
(the "Conveyance") to Walnut Hill Orchard, LLC ("New Borrower"). In
connection with the Conveyance, New Borrower has agreed to assume and be
bound by all of the terms of the Authority Loans and associated loan
documents.

13 Board Meeting of November 12, 2025
2025 - Page 183



ltem I

New Borrower is a single purpose entity that will be managed by Sydne Garchik,
the principal of MRK Partners, Inc. ("MRK"), which is the upstream entity that
seeks to acquire all of the assets of Ingerman Affordable Housing, Inc. through
various subsidiary entities.

MRK is a privately held real estate development and asset management
company formed in 2015, which currently owns more than 25 properties. MRK
has extensive LIHTC experience, including new construction development,
market rate to affordable conversions, and preservation of existing affordable
housing through LIHTC syndication and re-syndication. As part of its acquisition
of the Ingerman portfolio, MRK will take over operations of Ingerman
Management Company, the existing property management firm for the Project,
to ensure no disruption in day-to-day operations.

BOARD ACTION

The Board is asked to consent to the following:
e Permit the transfer of the Project to Walnut Hill Orchard, LLC and Walnut
Hill Orchard, LLC's assumption of the Authority Loans in the aggregate
principal amount of $1,797,000.00.

Proposed Resolution is attached:

Prepared by: Alex Braden

14 Board Meeting of November 12, 2025
2025 - Page 184



END OF PRA BOARD MINUTES OF
NOVEMBER 12, 2025



ltem |

BOARD FACTSHEET
Meeting of December 10, 2025
PHILADELPHIA Approval of First Amendment to Construction Contract
REDEVELOPMENT .
AUTHORITY Masonry Preservation Group, Inc.
Emergency Rehabilitation of Philadelphia Art Museum Steps

)
)
)

NATURE OF TRANSACTION:

The approval of a First Amendment to Construction Contract (the
"Amendment") between the Philadelphia Redevelopment Authority (the
"Authority"), as agent for the City of Philadelphia (the "City"), and Masonry
Preservation Group, Inc. ("MPG") for the emergency rehabilitation of the
Philadelphia Art Museum steps project, located at 2600 Benjamin Franklin
Parkway (the "Project").

On September 10, 2025, The Board of Directors of the Authority approved
Resolution 2025-32, approving a Construction Contract (the "Contract")
between the Authority, as agent for the City, and MPG for the Project. The
Contract was executed on September 23, 2025 and provided for maximum
compensation in an amount not to exceed $297,730.00.

The Amendment will extend the Contract completion date to March 31, 2026,
and approve additional scope and additional compensation in an amount not
to exceed $820,412.00.

The additional scope includes masonry repairs to the front steps fountain
cascades and repairs to the bluestone plaza.

BACKGROUND/FINANCING:

The Project will be funded with City Capital funds as outlined in the
executed Grant Agreement between the Authority and the City. The Grant
Agreement allows for funds to be transferred to the Authority for City
projects.

Proposed Resolution and supporting project information are attached
(photograph).

Prepared by: Robert LaBrum
Reviewed by: Alex Braden



ltem |

RESOLUTION NO.

RESOLUTION  AUTHORIZING THE PHILADELPHIA  REDEVELOPMENT
AUTHORITY, AS AGENT FOR THE CITY OF PHILADELPHIA, TO ENTER INTO A
FIRST AMENDMENT TO CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT WITH MASONRY
PRESERVATION GROUP, INC.,, FOR EMERGENCY REHIBILITATION OF THE
PHILADELPHIA ART MUSEUM STEPS PROJECT, LOCATED AT 2600 BENJAMIN
FRANKLIN PARKWAY

WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution 2025-32, adopted on September 10, 2025, the
Philadelphia Redevelopment Authority (the "Authority"), authorized the execution of a
Construction Contract (the "Contract™) between the Authority, as agent for the City of
Philadelphia (the "City") and Masonry Preservation Group, Inc. ("MPG”) with respect to the
Emergency Rehabilitation of the Philadelphia Art Museum (the "Museum™) Steps project,
located at 2600 Benjamin Franklin Parkway (the "Project™).

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Contract, the maximum compensation payable to MPG
under the Contract is an amount not to exceed Two Hundred Ninety-Seven Thousand Seven
Hundred Thirty Dollars ($327,503.00).

WHEREAS, the City has determined to increase the scope of the Project to include
masonry repairs to the Museum's front steps fountain cascades and repairs to the bluestone plaza
(collectively, the "Additional Work™) at an additional cost not to exceed Eight Hundred Twenty
Thousand Four Hundred Twelve Dollars ($820,412.00).

WHEREAS, it has been determined that the Contract completion date should be
extended be extended to March 31, 2026, to complete the Project.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Philadelphia Redevelopment
Authority, that authorization is hereby given to the Authority’s Deputy Executive Director of
Real Estate to enter into a First Amendment to the Construction Contract to (i) provide that MPG
perform the Additional Work, (ii) extend the Contract completion date to March 31, 2026, and
(iii) approve additional compensation payable to MPG for the Additional Work in an amount not
to exceed Nine Hundred Two Thousand Four Hundred Fifty-Three Dollars ($902,453.00) (base
compensation plus a ten percent (10%) contingency).

FURTHER AUTHORIZING, the preparation, execution, and delivery of all
documentation necessary to carry out the foregoing in form and substance acceptable to the Deputy
Executive Director of Real Estate and General Counsel.

FURTHER RESOLVING, that the Deputy Executive Director of Real Estate, with the
advice of General Counsel, may allow modifications to the Resolution and Construction Contract
necessary or desirable to carry out its purposes and intents.



First Amendment to Construciton Contract:

Emergency Rehibilitation of Philadelphia Art Museum Steps
2600 Benjamin Franklin Parkway

.zs
Washington
; ument Fo




ltem Il (@)

)
)
)

BOARD FACTSHEET

PHILADELPHIA Meeting of December 10, 2025
REDEVELOPMENT o :
AUTHORITY Certificate of Completion

3721-29 Brandywine Street

NAME OF DEVELOPER/APPLICANT: Brandywine Associates, LLC
("Redeveloper")

NATURE OF TRANSACTION: The Philadelphia Redevelopment Authority (the
"Authority") is asked to authorize the issuance of a Certificate of Completion
for 3721-29 Brandywine Street (the "Property").

BACKGROUND: Pursuant Resolution No. 2017-82, adopted by the Authority
Board of Directors on November 8, 2017, the Authority entered into a
Redevelopment Agreement with the Redeveloper dated September 15, 2017
to develop three (3) three-story multi-family residential rental units (the
"Project"). The Authority conveyed the Property to the Redeveloper by deed
dated October 12, 2018. Building permits were issued in September 2019.
The Project was completed and a Certificate of Occupancy was issued by the
City of Philadelphia (the "City").

Pursuant to the Redevelopment Agreement, the Redeveloper was required
to, among other things, adhere to the Economic Opportunity Plan ("EOP")
requirement to make good and best faith efforts to hire Minority-Business
Enterprises ("MBE") and Women-Business Enterprises ("WBE"). Based on the
Authority’s records, the Redeveloper only achieved hiring goals of two
percent (2%) for MBE and one percent (1%) for WBE.

The Redeveloper submitted a letter to the EOP Compliance Unit ("EOP Unit")
stating that the pandemic made it difficult to hire certified subcontractors
for the Project. The Redeveloper advised that some of the subcontractors
the Redeveloper used were minority-owned businesses, but not certified
MBEs. The Redeveloper indicated that because City employees were working
from home during the pandemic, it would have taken too much time to get
those subcontractors certified and that the Redeveloper had to complete the
Project in a timely manner in order to repay the loans on the Project. The
EOP Unit is unwilling to sign off to confirm that the EOP requirement to
make best and good faith efforts were met for the Project.



ltem Il (@)

Brahim Ighladen, the individual who is the managing/sole member of the
Redeveloper and of Casablanca Investors, LLC, the redeveloper identified in
the subsequent Board item relating to 4014 Green Street (the "Additional
Property"), has provided a combined security deposit for both properties in
the amount of Twenty-Two Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($22,500.00) (the
"Combined Security Deposit").

The Redeveloper has requested that the Authority Board approve the
Certificate of Completion for the Property, and Mr. Ighladen has requested
the Authority to use Eleven Thousand Eight Hundred and Thirty-Seven
Dollars ($11,837.00) of the Combined Security Deposit to pay the Fine Arts
obligations related to the Project and the Additional Property. In connection
therewith, Mr. Ighladen has agreed to forfeit the remainder of the Combined
Security Deposit in the amount of Ten Thousand Six Hundred Sixty-Three
Dollars ($10,663.00) for its failure to comply with the terms of the
Redevelopment Agreement and the redevelopment agreement for the
Additional Property.

Proposed Resolution is attached.

Prepared by: Brian Romano
Reviewed by: Angel Rodriguez



ltem Il (@)

RESOLUTION NO.

RESOLUTION APPROVING THE ISSUANCE OF A CERTIFICATE OF
COMPLETION FOR 3721-29 BRANDYWINE STREET

WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution No. 2017-82, adopted by the Philadelphia
Redevelopment Authority Board of Directors (the "Authority Board™) on November 8, 2017, the
Authority entered into a Redevelopment Agreement with Brandywine Associates, LLC
("Brandywine™) dated September 15, 2017 for the development of certain property located at
3721-29 Brandywine Street (the "Property") into three (3) three-story multi-family residential
rental units (the "Project™).

WHEREAS, the Authority conveyed the Property to Brandywine by deed dated October
12, 2018.

WHEREAS, after completion of the Project, Brandywine requested that the Authority
issue a Certificate of Completion.

WHEREAS, Brandywine was required to make good and best faith efforts to meet its
Economic Opportunity Plan ("EOP") goals to hire Minority-Business Enterprises ("MBE") and
Women-Business Enterprises ("WBE"). Based on the Authority’s records, Brandywine only
achieved hiring goals of two percent (2%) for MBE and one percent (1%) for WBE.

WHEREAS, Brandywine submitted a letter to the EOP Unit explaining why it fell short
of achieving the MBE/WBE goals due to the difficulty of hiring certified MBE/WBE
subcontractors during the pandemic and advised that some of the subcontractors Brandywine
hired were minority-owned businesses.

WHEREAS, the EOP Unit was unwilling to sign off on compliance with the EOP
requirement.

WHEREAS, Brandywine did develop the Property in accordance with the obligations set
forth in the Redevelopment Agreement except for compliance with the EOP.

WHEREAS, Brahim Ighladen, the individual who is the managing/sole member of
Brandywine and of Casablanca Investors, LLC, the redeveloper identified in the subsequent
Board item relating to 4014 Green Street ("Additional Property™), has provided a combined
security deposit for both properties in the amount of Twenty-Two Thousand Five Hundred
Dollars ($22,500.00) ("Combined Security Deposit").

WHEREAS, Mr. Ighladen has requested the Authority to use Eleven Thousand Eight
Hundred and Thirty-Seven Dollars ($11,837.00) of the Combined Security Deposit to pay the
Fine Arts obligations related to the Project and the Additional Property.

WHEREAS, Brandywine has requested the Authority Board to approve the Certificate of
Completion for the Property and Mr. Ighladen has agreed to forfeit the remainder of the



ltem Il (@)

Combined Security Deposit in the amount of Ten Thousand Six Hundred Sixty-Three Dollars
($10,663.00) for its failure to comply with the terms of the Redevelopment Agreement and the
redevelopment agreement for the Additional Property.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Philadelphia Redevelopment
Authority, that the Deputy Executive Director of Real Estate is hereby authorized to issue a
Certificate of Completion certifying the completion of the Project at 3721-29 Brandywine Street
subject to the partial forfeiture of the Combined Security Deposit in the amount of Ten Thousand
Six Hundred Sixty-Three Dollars ($10,663.00).

FURTHER AUTHORIZING, the preparation, execution, and delivery of all
documentation necessary to carry out the foregoing in form and substance acceptable to the
Deputy Executive Director of Real Estate and General Counsel.

FURTHER RESOLVING, that the Deputy Executive Director of Real Estate, with the
advice of General Counsel, may allow modifications to the Resolution necessary or desirable to
carry out its purposes and intents.



ltem Il (b)

)
)
)

BOARD FACTSHEET

PHILADELPHIA Meeting of December 10, 2025
REDEVELOPMENT o :
AUTHORITY Certificate of Completion

4014 Green Street

NAME OF DEVELOPER/APPLICANT: Casablanca Investors, LLC
("Redeveloper")

NATURE OF TRANSACTION: The Philadelphia Redevelopment Authority (the
"Authority") is asked to authorize the issuance of a Certificate of Completion
for 4014 Green Street (the "Property").

BACKGROUND: Pursuant Resolution No. 2017-59, adopted by the Authority
Board of Directors on August 9, 2017, the Authority entered into a
Redevelopment Agreement with the Redeveloper dated April 10, 2017 to
develop three (3) residential rental units (the "Project"). The Authority
conveyed the Property to the Redeveloper by deed dated October 12, 2018.
Building permits were issued in September 2019. The Project was completed
and a Certificate of Occupancy was issued by the City of Philadelphia (the
"City").

Pursuant to the Redevelopment Agreement, the Redeveloper was required
to, among other things, adhere to the Economic Opportunity Plan ("EOP")
requirement to make good and best faith efforts to hire Minority-Business
Enterprises ("MBE") and Women-Business Enterprises ("WBE"). Based on the
Authority’s records, the Redeveloper only achieved hiring goals of six percent
(6%) for MBE and four percent (4%) for WBE.

The Redeveloper submitted a letter to the EOP Compliance Unit ("EOP Unit")
stating that the pandemic made it difficult to hire certified subcontractors
for the Project. The Redeveloper advised that some of the subcontractors
the Redeveloper used were minority-owned businesses, but not certified
MBEs. The Redeveloper indicated that because City employees were working
from home during the pandemic, it would have taken too much time to get
those subcontractors certified and that the Redeveloper had to complete the
Project in a timely manner in order to repay the loans on the Project. The
EOP Unit is unwilling to sign off to confirm that the EOP requirement to
make best and good faith efforts were met for the Project.



ltem Il (b)

Brahim Ighladen, the individual who is the managing/sole member of the
Redeveloper and of Brandywine Associates, LLC, the redeveloper identified
in the previous Board item relating to 3721-29 Brandywine Street (the
"Additional Property"), has provided a combined security deposit for both
properties in the amount of Twenty-Two Thousand Five Hundred Dollars
($22,500.00) (the "Combined Security Deposit").

The Redeveloper has requested that the Authority Board approve the
Certificate of Completion for the Property, and Mr. Ighladen has requested
the Authority to use Eleven Thousand Eight Hundred and Thirty-Seven
Dollars ($11,837.00) of the Combined Security Deposit to pay the Fine Arts
obligations related to the Project and the Additional Property. In connection
therewith, Mr. Ighladen has agreed to forfeit the remainder of the Combined
Security Deposit in the amount of Ten Thousand Six Hundred Sixty-Three
Dollars ($10,663.00) for its failure to comply with the terms of the
Redevelopment Agreement and the redevelopment agreement for the
Additional Property.

Proposed Resolution is attached.

Prepared by: Brian Romano
Reviewed by: Angel Rodriguez



ltem Il (b)

RESOLUTION NO.

RESOLUTION APPROVING THE ISSUANCE OF A CERTIFICATE OF
COMPLETION FOR 4014 GREEN STREET

WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution No. 2017-59, adopted by the Philadelphia
Redevelopment Authority Board of Directors (the "Authority Board™) on August 9, 2017, the
Authority entered into a Redevelopment Agreement with Casablanca Investors, LLC
("Casablanca™) dated April 10, 2017 for the development of certain property located at 4014
Green Street (the "Property™) into three (3) residential rental units (the "Project™).

WHEREAS, the Authority conveyed the Property to the Casablanca by deed dated October
12, 2018.

WHEREAS, after completion of the Project, Casablanca requested that the Authority issue
a Certificate of Completion.

WHEREAS, Casablanca was required to make good and best faith efforts to meet its
Economic Opportunity Plan ("EOP") goals to hire Minority-Business Enterprises ("MBE") and
Women-Business Enterprises ("WBE"). Based on the Authority’s records, Casablanca only
achieved hiring goals of six percent (6%) for MBE and four percent (4%) for WBE.

WHEREAS, Casablanca submitted a letter to the EOP Unit explaining why it fell short of
achieving the MBE/WBE goals due to the difficulty of hiring certified MBE/WBE subcontractors
during the pandemic and advised that some of the subcontractors Casablanca hired were minority-
owned businesses.

WHEREAS, the EOP Unit was unwilling to sign off on compliance with the EOP
requirement.

WHEREAS, Casablanca did develop the Property in accordance with the obligations set
forth in the Redevelopment Agreement except for compliance with the EOP.

WHEREAS, Brahim Ighladen, the individual who is the managing/sole member of
Casablanca and of Brandywine Associates, LLC, the redeveloper identified in the previous Board
item relating to 3721-29 Brandywine Street ("Additional Property™), has provided a combined
security deposit for both properties in the amount of Twenty-Two Thousand Five Hundred
Dollars ($22,500.00) ("Combined Security Deposit").

WHEREAS, Mr. Ighladen has requested the Authority to use Eleven Thousand Eight
Hundred and Thirty-Seven Dollars ($11,837.00) of the Combined Security Deposit to pay the
Fine Arts obligations related to the Project and the Additional Property.

WHEREAS, Casablanca has requested the Authority Board to approve the Certificate of

Completion for the Property and Mr. Ighladen has agreed to forfeit the remainder of the
Combined Security Deposit in the amount of Ten Thousand Six Hundred Sixty-Three Dollars

10



ltem Il (b)

($10,663.00) for its failure to comply with the terms of the Redevelopment Agreement and the
redevelopment agreement for the Additional Property.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Philadelphia Redevelopment
Authority, that the Deputy Executive Director of Real Estate is hereby authorized to issue a
Certificate of Completion certifying the completion of the Project at 4014 Green Street subject to
the partial forfeiture of the Combined Security Deposit in the amount of Ten Thousand Six
Hundred Sixty-Three Dollars ($10,663.00).

FURTHER AUTHORIZING, the preparation, execution, and delivery of all
documentation necessary to carry out the foregoing in form and substance acceptable to the
Deputy Executive Director of Real Estate and General Counsel.

FURTHER RESOLVING, that the Deputy Executive Director of Real Estate, with the

advice of General Counsel, may allow modifications to the Resolution necessary or desirable to
carry out its purposes and intents.

11



Iltem [l

BOARD FACTSHEET
Meeting of December 10, 2025
PHILADELPHIA Consent to Transfer of Interests and Assumption of Existing Loan
REDEVELOPMENT o
AUTHORITY originally made to St. Maron Hall, LP
Birchwood at Cedars Village
921-31 Ellsworth Street

)
)
)

NATURE OF TRANSACTION: Authorization for the Philadelphia Redevelopment
Authority (the "Authority") to consent to the transfer of the controlling
interest in the Project (as hereinafter defined) and the assumption of existing
Authority debt with respect to the Project.

BACKGROUND: In 2012, the Authority provided a loan in the amount of
$3,220,000.00 (the "Loan") to St. Maron Hall, LP ("Borrower"), a subsidiary of
Ingerman Affordable Housing Inc. ("IAH"), which Loan is evidenced and/or
secured by (i) a certain Loan Agreement dated March 12, 2012 by and between
the Authority and Borrower (the "Loan Agreement"), (ii) a certain Note in the
amount of $3,220,000.00 from Borrower to the Authority (the "Note"), (iii) a
certain Open-End Leasehold Mortgage from Borrower to the Authority (the
"Mortgage"), and (iv) various other documents evidencing and/or securing the
Loan (together with the Loan Agreement, the Mortgage and the Note,
collectively, the "Loan Documents"). The proceeds of the Loan were used to
assist with the new construction of 64 units of permanent rental housing for
low-income residents located at 921-31 Ellsworth Street (the "Property"),
known as Birchwood at Cedars Village (formerly St. Maron Hall) (the "Project").

The Loan is structured with a term of 30 years at 0% interest from the date of
the initial loan closing, with the entire principal balance of the Loan due and
payable 30 years from the date of the initial loan closing.

The Project is also subject to a certain Declaration of Restrictive Covenants,
Conditions and Restrictions dated as of March 12, 2012, made by Borrower, as
tenant under that certain Ground Lease with respect to the Property dated as
of March 12, 2012 (the "Ground Lease") and joined by St. Maron Community
Development Corp., as landlord under the Ground Lease (the "DORC").

PROPOSAL: Brad Ingerman, the principal of IAH, is in the process of liquidating
his various affordable housing assets, and in connection therewith has
proposed that IAH—the sole member of St. Maron GP, LLC ("GP"), the general
partner of and controlling interest holder in Borrower—transfer all of its

12



Iltem [l

membership interests in GP (the "Transfer") to KRM Mid-Atlantic, LLC ("KRM").
In connection with the Conveyance, KRM has agreed to assume all of IAH's
obligations with respect to the Project, GP, Borrower, the Loan, the Loan
Documents, the Ground Lease and the DORC.

KRM is a Florida limited liability company that will be managed by Sydne
Garchik, the principal of MRK Partners, Inc. ("MRK"), which is the upstream
entity that seeks to acquire all of the assets of IAH through various subsidiary
entities.

MRK is a privately held real estate development and asset management
company formed in 2015, which currently owns more than 25 properties. MRK
has extensive LIHTC experience, including new construction development,
market rate to affordable conversions, and preservation of existing affordable
housing through LIHTC syndication and re-syndication. As part of its acquisition
of the IAH portfolio, MRK will take over operations of Ingerman Management
Company, the existing property management firm for the Project, to ensure no
disruption in day-to-day operations.

BOARD ACTION:
The Board is asked to consent to the following:
e Permit the transfer of IAH's membership interests in GP to KRM, and the
assumption by KRM of all of IAH's obligations with respect to the Project,
GP, Borrower, the Loan, the Loan Documents, the Ground Lease and the
DORC.

Proposed Resolution is attached.

Prepared by: Alex Braden

13



Iltem [l

RESOLUTION NO.

RESOLUTION  AUTHORIZING THE PHILADELPHIA  REDEVELPMENT
AUTHORITY TO CONSENT TO THE TRANSFER OF THE CONTROLLING
INTEREST IN, AND ASSUMPTION OF EXISTING LOAN ORIGINALLY MADE TO,
ST. MARON HALL, LP

WHEREAS, on March 12, 2012, the Philadelphia Redevelopment Authority (the
"Authority™) issued a non-recourse construction loan (the "Loan™) to St. Maron Hall, LP
("Borrower"), a subsidiary of Ingerman Affordable Housing Inc. ("IAH"), which Loan is
evidenced and/or secured by (i) a certain Loan Agreement dated March 12, 2012 by and between
the Authority and Borrower (the "Loan Agreement"), (ii) a certain Note in the amount of Three
Million Two Hundred Twenty Thousand Dollars ($3,220,000.00) from Borrower to the
Authority (the "Note"), (iii) a certain Open-End Leasehold Mortgage from Borrower to the
Authority (the "Mortgage™), and (iv) various other documents evidencing and/or securing the
Loan (together with the Loan Agreement, the Mortgage and the Note, collectively, the "Loan
Documents”).

WHEREAS, the Loan is structured with a term of 30 years at 0% interest from the date
of the initial loan closing, with the entire principal balance of the Loan due and payable 30 years
from the date of the initial loan closing.

WHEREAS, the proceeds of the Loan were used to assist with the new construction of
64 units of permanent rental housing for low-income residents located at 921-31 Ellsworth Street
(the "Property"), known as Birchwood at Cedars Village (formerly St. Maron Hall) (the
"Project").

WHEREAS, the Project is subject to a certain Declaration of Restrictive Covenants,
Conditions and Restrictions dated as of March 12, 2012, made by Borrower, as tenant under that
certain Ground Lease with respect to the Property dated as of March 12, 2012 (the "Ground
Lease") and joined by St. Maron Community Development Corp., as landlord under the Ground
Lease (the "DORC™").

WHEREAS, IAH is in the process of liquidating its various affordable housing assets,
and in connection therewith has proposed that IAH—the sole member of St. Maron GP, LLC
("GP"), the general partner of and controlling interest holder in Borrower—transfer all of its
membership interests in GP (the "Transfer") to KRM Mid-Atlantic, LLC ("KRM").

WHEREAS, in connection with the Transfer, KRM has agreed to assume all of 1AH's
obligations with respect to the Project, GP, Borrower, the Loan, the Loan Documents, the
Ground Lease and the DORC, and to take over management of the Project, all as more
specifically set forth in the fact sheet accompanying this Resolution.

WHEREAS, IAH and KRM have requested that the Authority consent to the Transfer.

14



Iltem [l

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors of the
Philadelphia Redevelopment Authority, that authorization is hereby given to permit the transfer
of 1AH's membership interests in GP to KRM, and the assumption by KRM of all of IAH's
obligations with respect to the Project GP, Borrower, the Loan in the , the Loan Documents, the
Ground Lease and the DORC.

FURTHER AUTHORIZING, the preparation, execution, and delivery of all
documentation necessary to carry out the foregoing in form and substance acceptable to the
Deputy Executive Director of Real Estate and General Counsel.

FURTHER RESOLVING, that the Deputy Executive Director of Real Estate, with the

advice of General Counsel, may allow modifications to the Resolution necessary or desirable to
carry out its purposes and intents.

15



	12-10-2025 PRA Board Agenda
	12-10-2025 Agenda (f)
	PHILADELPHIA REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
	PHILADELPHIA, PA  19107
	BOARD MEETING
	WEDNESDAY, DECEMBER 10, 2025
	A G E N D A




	12-10-2025 PRA Board Agenda (Package)
	11-12-2025 PRA Board Minutes
	11-12-2025 PRA Board Minutes
	11-12-2025 PRA Board Minutes
	BOARD MEETING MINUTES
	ROLL CALL

	RESOLUTION NO. 2025-39
	FURTHER AUTHORIZING, the preparation, execution, and delivery of all documentation necessary to carry out the foregoing in form and substance acceptable to the Deputy Executive Director of Real Estate and General Counsel.
	RESOLUTION NO. 2025-40



	11-12-2025 Board Fact Sheets
	Board Items
	Item Ia (6th Amendment to Grant Agreement with City of Philadelphia Department of Public Property)
	Item Ia_FS (6th Amendment to Grant Agreement with City of Philadelphia Department of Public Property)

	Item Ib (Transfer PRA to PLB NO 2025)
	Item Ib_FS (Transfer PRA to PLB NO 2025)

	Item II (Transfer and assumption of existing Authority loans)
	Item II_FS (Transfer and assumption of existing Authority loans)




	Last Page - End of PRA Board Minutes

	Board Items
	Item I (Art Museum Steps-MPG-1st Amendment)
	Item I_FS (Art Museum Steps-MPG-1st Amendment)
	Item I_Res (Art Museum Steps-MPG-1st Amendment)
	RESOLUTION NO.

	Item I_Photos (Art Museum Steps-MPG-1st Amendment)

	Item IIa (COC - 3721-29 Brandywine Street)
	Item IIa_FS (COC - 3721-29 Brandywine Street)
	Item IIa_Res (COC - 3721-29 Brandywine Street)

	Item IIb (COC - 4014 Green Street)
	Item IIb_FS (COC - 4014 Green Street)
	Item IIb_Res (COC - 4014 Green Street)

	Item III (Transfer and assumption of existing Authority loans)
	Item III_FS (Transfer and assumption of existing Authority loans)
	Item III_Res (Transfer and assumption of existing Authority loans)






